Neighbors of Belknap Lookout

Board Policy Packet 2023

Set by the neighborhood

Bylaws: Page 2

Set by the board

Officer Definitions and Duties: Page 13

Procurement Policy: Page 15

Diversity Policy: Page 17

Complaint Procedure: Page 18

Complaint Intake Form: Page 21

Conflict of Interest Policy Page 23

Conflict of Interest Signature Page Page 31

Board Policy on Volunteer Stipend / Gratuities Page 32

Succession Plan Page 33

Packet Affirmed by the Board on January 9, 2023

Neighbors of Belknap Lookout, A Non-Profit Corporation Bylaws

I. Title and Purpose

A. Title - The name of this corporation shall be Neighbors of Belknap Lookout

(hereinafter referred to as NOBL).

B. Purpose - NOBL is a non-profit corporation organized under the laws of the State of

Michigan and serves the area known as the Belknap Community. The purpose of the corporation is to embark upon programs and other activities for the betterment and preservation of the community. It further seeks to take appropriate and lawful action deemed necessary from time to time by the NOBL Board of Directors to maintain and improve the neighborhood in the areas of crime, housing, communications, business, education, social affairs and other related areas.

C. Gifts - This Corporation shall have the opportunity to receive gifts, donations, legacies, bequests, devises and distributions from wills not inconsistent with the laws of the State of Michigan. However, no gifts other than unrestricted and unconditional gifts, or gifts designated to established programs or projects, of cash, cash equivalents, and marketable securities may be accepted by the Corporation without the approval of the Board of Directors.

- D. Investments Subject to limitations imposed by any donor which are accepted by the Corporation, the Board shall have the authority to invest and reinvest the assets of the Corporation in such investments as an ordinarily prudent person of intelligence and integrity, who is the trustee of moneys of others would purchase in the exercise of reasonable care, judgment and diligence, under the conditions existing at the time of purchase, having due regard for the management, reputation and stability of the issuer and the character of the particular securities.
- II. Boundaries of the NOBL area The NOBL area is defined as all properties located within an area bordered by the centerline of Leonard St. on the North, the eastern bank of the Grand River to the West, the centerline of College Ave. to the East, and the properties located on both sides of Michigan Ave. to the South.
- III. Membership Any inhabitant, property owner or business within the NOBL boundary are members.

IV. General Membership Meetings

- A. Frequency There shall be a minimum of one (1) general membership meetings held per year, on a date established by the Board of Directors.
- B. Purpose The purpose of the fall meeting shall be the election of the Board of Directors.

- C. Notice of General Meeting Notice of General Membership Meetings, setting forth the date, time and place of the General Meeting, shall be published in any print or electronic media readily available to the public for which NOBL serves and posted in the NOBL office at least thirty (30) days prior to the scheduled date.
- D. Voting Privileges All NOBL members who provide contact information are entitled to vote at General Meetings; the NOBL board may establish procedures for viewing proof of current membership.
- E. Special Meetings Special meetings of the general membership may be called upon written request to the Board of Directors of at least twenty five (25) members. Notice shall be published at least three (3) days in advance of the date for such a meeting. The purpose of such a meeting shall be stated and no other business shall be conducted.
- F. Elections Each year there will be three (3) open seats for terms of three (3) years on the Board of Directors. The new Board members shall take office at the next regular meeting following the election.
- G. Nominating Process A nominating committee shall be formed by the Board of Directors, excluding those running for re-election. The purpose of the nominating committee is to evaluate candidates for Board election and to oversee elections; it may propose a slate of candidates for adoptions by the general membership. Candidates shall not have served more than three (3) consecutive years to be considered for an immediate subsequent three year term. Those individuals interested in serving on the Board should notify the

nominating committee no later than thirty (30) days prior to the next general membership meeting. Should the committee propose a slate of candidates, another individual must nominate the interested individual from the floor during the general membership meeting.

V. Board of Directors - The business of the corporation shall be managed by its Board of Directors. The number of directors shall not be less than five (5) nor more than nine (9). Vacancies in the Board of Directors, including those caused by an increase in the number of directors, may be filled by a majority vote of the remaining Directors, and each Director so appointed shall hold office until either the end of the term for which they were appointed or the next election at the Board's discretion. All directors serve on the Board of NOBL as volunteers and without any compensation of any type, form, or kind.

A. Duties

- 1. The Board of Directors shall establish necessary committees, authorize necessary studies and approve all agreements and contracts which are part of the NOBL programs.
- 2. The Board of Directors shall secure funds necessary for the achievement of the goals and objectives set forth by the NOBL Board.
- 3. Set all goals and objectives for the organization.
- 4. Draft and approve all policies for the organization.
- 5. All Board of Directors are encouraged to participate in community activities.

- 6. Delegate duties to staff as necessary and appropriate.
- B. Attendance Requirements All Board members shall attend all regular meetings. Unexcused absence of a Board member from any two (2) consecutive meetings shall be considered a declaration of resignation. An excused absence constitutes notification to staff or board member preferably 24 hours prior to meeting. A board member participating in a meeting by means of conference telephone or similar communications equipment by means of which all persons participating in the meeting can hear each other shall be deemed to be present at the meeting.
- C. Frequency The Board of Directors shall meet at least ten (10) times per year.
- D. Quorum A quorum for a meeting of the Board of Directors shall be five (5) Board Members.
- E. Parliamentary Procedure When operating by consensus is not productive, Roberts Rules of Order shall be used and observed at all NOBL meetings with the addition of the following rules:
 - 1. The chairperson shall not vote except for the purpose of breaking a tie vote.

- 2. All business to be voted upon shall require a simple majority vote of those Board Members present, except as otherwise specified herein.
- 3. Members of the Board of Directors shall be allowed to vote by proxy.
- 4. Voting privileges at Board meetings are reserved to voting Board

F. Agenda and Speaking Privileges

- 1. In order to address the Board of Directors on a new topic, any person must ask to be included in the agenda prior to its adoption, or wait until the public comment section.
- 2. The Chairperson shall adopt the agenda not less than three (3) business days prior to the next regular or special Board meeting.
- 3. A non-board member may not enter into discussion or debate until members of the Board have had an opportunity to speak and must first be recognized by the Chairperson.
- G. Executive Session The Board of Directors may meet in a closed session excluding all other persons at the discretion of the Chairperson for the purpose of staff evaluation and performance, disciplinary actions, and property and/or contract negotiations.

H. Disciplinary Procedures - In the case of inappropriate and or unacceptable conduct, lesser than removal of office, at their discretion, the Board may issue verbal, written or sanction as the offense warrants.

I. Removal from Office

- 1. The removal of a member of the Board of Directors may take place whenever the Board determines that it is in the best interest of the organization.
- 2. A motion to remove a Board Member from office shall not be acted upon by the Board of Directors for thirty (30) days, or until the next regular Board meeting, during which time the Board Member in question may organize a defense.
- 3. A two-thirds (2/3) vote of all elected Board members plus one (1) is required to remove a member from the Board.
- 4. Such a vote to remove a Board member shall be acted upon immediately after all votes are cast and accounted for.
 - a. If the Board member in question is also an Executive member of the Board, any and all paperwork and/or related devices associated with his/her position shall be relinquished to the Board within a twenty-four (24) hour period from the date of removal from office.
- J. Vacancies Vacancies shall be filled from a list of previous approved candidates and any others nominated by any board member. The Executive Committee will review the credentials of all new nominees and present the slate at the next meeting for vote by

the board. Appointments may be made for the remainder of the term or until the next election.

K. Action by Board of Directors Without a Meeting - Any action required or permitted to be taken at any meeting of the Board of Directors or any committee thereof may be taken without a meeting if, before or after the action, all members of the Board or of the committee, as the case may be, shall have signed a written consent. Any such written consents shall be filed with the minutes of the proceedings of the Board or the Committee.

VI. Executive Officers

A. The officers of NOBL shall be: Chairperson, Vice-Chairperson, Treasurer, and Secretary.

B. Removal - Any officer appointed by the Board of Directors may be removed by the Board of Directors, whenever in its judgment the best interests of the Corporation shall be served thereby, but such removal shall be considered separately from removal from the Board of Directors.

VII. Committees - The Board may establish such committees as it deems necessary and appropriate.

VIII. Staff - The Board may hire an Executive Director as it deems necessary and appropriate.

IX. Conflict of Interest - NOBL shall maintain and follow a Conflict of Interest policy.

X. Indemnification

A. General - To the full extent authorized under the laws of the State of Michigan, NOBL shall indemnify any director, officer, employee, or agent, or former member, director, officer, employee, or agent of the corporation, or any person who may have served at the corporation's request as a director or officer of another corporation (each of the foregoing members, directors, officers, employees, agents, and persons is referred to in this Article individually as an "indemnitee"), against expenses actually and necessarily incurred by such indemnitee in connection with the defense of any action, suit, or proceeding in which that indemnitee is made a party by reason of being or having been such member, director, officer, employee, or agent, except in relation to matters as to which that indemnitee shall have been adjudged in such action, suit, or proceeding to be liable for negligence or misconduct in the performance of a duty. The foregoing indemnification shall not be deemed exclusive of any other rights to which an indemnitee may be entitled under any bylaw, agreement, resolution of the Board of Directors, or otherwise.

B. Expenses - Expenses (including reasonable attorneys' fees) incurred in defending a civil or criminal action, suit, or proceeding may be paid by the corporation in advance of the final disposition of such action, suit, or proceeding, if authorized by the Board of Directors, upon receipt of an undertaking by or on behalf of the indemnitee to repay such amount if it shall ultimately be determined that such indemnitee is not entitled to be indemnified hereunder.

C. Insurance - The corporation may purchase and maintain insurance on behalf of any person who is or was a member, director, officer,

employee, or agent against any liability asserted against such person and incurred by such person in any such capacity or arising out of such person's status as such, whether or not the corporation would have the power or obligation to indemnify such person against such liability under this Article.

XI. Books & Records - NOBL shall keep complete books and records of account and minutes of the proceedings of the Board of Directors.

XII. Amendment of Bylaws - These bylaws may be amended by NOBL members if the proposed amendment is presented to any Board of Directors meeting with the vote thereon to take place at the next General Membership Meeting by a two thirds (2/3) vote of the attending membership, or by a two-thirds (2/3) vote of the Board. Notice of a membership-proposed amendment shall be published in any print media available to the Belknap Neighborhood, along with the notice of the General Meeting.

These Bylaws were voted on by the Neighbors of Belknap Lookout Board on October 9, 2018.

In order to ensure compliance with the NOBL bylaws during the pandemic, the following may be considered as an official amendment if needed, having been shared the month prior to the vote in accordance with revision requirements.

Part IV A is understood to include the options of a mail in ballot and/or virtual meeting. Part C is understood to include a deadline of sixty (60) days notice for individuals interested in serving on the Board to notify the nominating committee in the event of the mail in and virtual meeting options. Similarly, should the committee propose a slate of candidates for a mail in ballot, space will be provided for write in candidates at a minimum, or they may indicate all candidates with their selections emphasized.

This interpretation was voted on by the Neighbors of Belknap Lookout Board on September 14, 2020.

Officer Definitions and Duties: The officers of the NOBL board shall be a chair, vice chair, secretary, and treasurer. As a body they may 1) serve as the small group to handle a temporary change in Executive Director, and 2) be authorized to finalize letters the board has requested to send.

As individuals, the Chair and the Treasurer may sign checks; the Chair (and the Executive Director) may sign contracts as directed by the board.

- A) The Chair may take reports from the Executive Director between meetings and will compile input from the board for the Executive Director's annual review. The bulk of the Chair's regular responsibilities have to do with running board meetings, at which he or she will:
 - Call the meeting to order at the appointed time and announce items on the agenda in the proper order.
 - Recognize those who wish to speak in proper order; protect the rights of the person speaking and maintain decorum.
 - · Clarify all motions that have been made and seconded, so that all have heard and understand the motion before calling for a vote.
 - State definitively and clearly the result of the vote.

The Chair is currently defined in the bylaws as not voting except in the case of a tie; we would like to change that practice by group agreement for the time being and remove that requirement from the bylaws the next time they are updated.

To expand the statement about the Chair signing checks: the Chair signs checks, makes deposits, and approves purchases over \$300 per item.

The Chair and the Executive Director may both make public statements (primarily for news media) for the organization and should keep each other informed of what they have said.

- B) The Vice Chair should be familiar with the duties of the Chairperson and be prepared at all times to assume that office.
- C) The Treasurer serves as back up to the Chair when they are not available to sign checks, make deposits, and approve purchases over \$300 per item. The Treasurer is encouraged to review monthly bank statements and financial reports; the latter are presented to the full board quarterly. The Treasurer may lead those discussions, take part in the preparation and presentation of the budget (Q4) and the 990 (after year end). They may also recommend updates to financial procedures.
- D) The Secretary should keep careful and authentic records of development proceedings and all motions. General discussions may be summarized with emphasis on the overall conclusion, and only highlights of the pros and cons discussed. The minutes should be shared with the board, via the Executive Director if desired, within 2 weeks of the meeting.

For reference, the remainder of our internal controls call for segregating other financial duties such that the Executive Director prepares checks, opens mail, makes purchases, and retains records; and our bookkeeping company (DD Morgan) completes data entry and reconciliation, and generates quarterly financials.

Duties reviewed

Neighbors of Belknap Lookout Procurement Policy

Neighbors of Belknap Lookout will follow the following procurement procedures when using both federal and other funds.

Procurement Standards:

The following minimum procurement standards must be used in the procurement of all services, supplies, and property when using any fund, and especially federal funds in whole or in part. These would include, but not be limited to, independent audits, bookkeeping, accounting services, printing services, and office supplies. If federal funds are used in part to procure goods or services, the total amount of the good or service (for example a multi-year contract) will be used to determine applicable procedures.

Method of Procurement:

- a. Below \$300 To the extent practicable, the entity must distribute the purchase equitably among qualified suppliers. The purchase may be awarded without soliciting competitive quotations if the entity considers the price to be reasonable. Staff is authorized to make these purchases within budget without authorization. Use of local businesses is preferred; if unavailable seeking a minority owned business is recommended.
- b. Between \$300 and \$3000 As above, but Staff shall seek concurrence from the Chair (or if needed the Treasurer) for any single item at this level.
- c. Between \$3000 and \$10,000 NOBL prefers to obtain 3 quotes for all items at this level. Staff shall report the results of the bid process at a meeting of the Executive Committee or full Board before proceeding with the purchase. Either body may approve a direct selection (without other quotes) for a budgeted project if the price is felt to be reasonable.

d Over \$10,000 – For non-Federal funds, quotes are sufficient, with the decision on the vendor to be made by three disinterested members of the Executive Committee or a quorum of the full Board as convenient.

For Federal funds: A written solicitation for bids shall be sent to a minimum of three potential vendors. This solicitation shall:

Clearly set forth all requirements the bidder must fulfill, including the last date on which bids will be accepted. All other factors used to evaluate bids must be clearly stated.

Be based on a clear and accurate description of the technical requirements for the material, product, or service to be procured. Such a description shall not contain features which unduly restrict competition.

At least three written bids must be obtained.

The above process should be used when hiring staff (using an open platform like Indeed to reach the general public).

This policy was approved at our board of directors' meeting on April 11, 2022.

NOBL Diversity Policy

Adopted September 2017

No person is excluded from receiving NOBL services due to discriminatory reasons including age, disability, economic circumstance, race, ethnicity, gender, gender identity or expression, sexual orientation, world view, spiritual beliefs, marital status, national origin or veteran status.

No one is excluded from consideration for employment or volunteer participation with NOBL, regardless of age, disability, economic circumstance, race, ethnicity, gender, gender identity or expression, sexual orientation, world view, spiritual beliefs, marital status, national origin or veteran status.

NOBL strives to intentionally increase inclusive practices and incorporate diversity throughout its mission, governance board, staff, volunteers, vendors and constituents.

COMPLAINT PROCEDURE

Neighbors of Belknap Lookout (NOBL)

Applicability

The following policy applies to service recipients and applicants for programs funded by the Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) who feel they have been denied access to, or limited in their participation in the program. HUD programs are provided through direct services of the City Community Development Department and other City Departments, and through contractual relationships with nonprofit and for-profit organizations. The policy provides a procedure for hearing and resolving complaints to the satisfaction of all parties involved.

Subject of Complaints

Complaints regarding the quality of services, manner or timeliness of service delivery, and denial of services under HUD-funded programs and projects are eligible for consideration under this policy.

Note:

- § Complaints regarding employment at Neighbors of Belknap Lookout will be handled according to NOBL's personnel policies.
- § Complaints regarding issues not related to HUD funded programs at NOBL will be handled according to NOBL policies.

Notice and Availability of Policy

Citizens are encouraged to contact staff persons of NOBL before escalating complaints to the City Community Development Department. A copy of the complaint policy and procedures for NOBL is available upon

request by calling 616-454-8413. A notice is also posted in the main office at 700 Clancy NE Grand Rapids MI 49503

Procedures for Complaints

Staff person(s) responsible for administering the HUD-funded program shall make initial efforts to resolve any complaints. The following steps shall be followed if initial efforts are unsuccessful:

1. A written complaint shall be registered using a Complaint Intake Form or other written correspondence. Persons who need assistance submitting a written complaint because of language or similar barriers may call us at 616-454-8413 for assistance.

Written complaints regarding direct services provided by NOBL should be addressed to:

NOBL

Elianna Bootzin*

700 Clancy NE

Grand Rapids, MI 49503

A written response shall be provided to written complaints within fifteen (15) business days of receipt unless otherwise indicated. A copy of the complaint and the response will be retained in the NOBL Complaint File.

2. A complainant who is not satisfied with the response above may request reconsideration of the complaint from the City's Program Contract Administrator. The complainant will be provided with the name and phone number of the City's Program Contract Administrator. The City's Program Contract Administrator will resolve the complaint according to the City's Complaint Procedures Policy.

Complaints remaining unresolved following submission to the City may be submitted to the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD), Detroit Office, CPD Division, McNamara Federal Building, 477 Michigan Avenue, Detroit, MI 48226.

Complainants may elect to submit a written complaint to HUD at any point in the process, but are encouraged to pursue local remedies first.

Records

A record of all written complaints and subsequent responses are maintained for at least four (4) years at the offices of NOBL located at 700 Clancy NE Grand Rapids, MI 49503. Records of complaints regarding a HUD-funded program may be reviewed by representatives of the City of Grand Rapids and HUD at any time upon request.

Certification

I hereby certify that the above resolution was presented to and approved by the Board of Directors of the Corporation at its meeting on the <u>14</u> day of <u>June</u>, 20<u>16</u>.

Name of Authorized Official: Kristi DeKraker

Title of Authorized Official: Executive Director

*Contact name updated 9/12/2017

Attachments to this Policy: Complaint Intake Form

COMPLAINT INTAKE FORM

Date:	Program/Subject:	
Name of complainan	t:	
Mailing add	dress:	
Daytime Phone:		
Name of person com	pleting form:	
Description of complai	nt:	

Use additional paper if necessary.	
Signature of person submitting complaint:	
Complaint forwarded to:	
Date:	

Neighbors of Belknap Lookout

Conflict of Interest Policy 2022

Whereas concerns about conflict of interest have been raised by neighbors;

Whereas conduct above reproach is vital for the health and continued operations of the organization, including the acquisition of CDBG funds for so long as the neighborhood remains eligible for same;

And whereas we need to take a clear stand to make it as easy as possible for board and committee members to fulfill their duty to promote the best interests of the non-profit, thereby preventing an existential crisis,

Be it therefore resolved this conflict of interest procedure shall prohibit any board member from personally bringing a proposal to sell goods or services or a board or committee member from bringing a development project to the organization for support during their term and for a period of one year afterwards in concurrence with the CDBG ruling that board members and committee members who impact how the relevant decisions will be made may not be hired as staff until they have stepped down for the same period, however

Be it further resolved that implementation of this requirement will allow members who resign by January 31, 2021 to resume such activities beginning April 2021.

Article I

<u>Purpose</u>

The purpose of the conflict of interest policy is 1) to protect Neighbors of Belknap Lookout's (the Organization, which includes the NOBL Board or any committee) interest when it is contemplating entering into a transaction or arrangement that might benefit the private interest of an officer or director of the organization or might result in a possible excess benefit transaction, 2) to protect the Organization from the appearance of a conflict

of interest when determining positions to be shared at local government public hearings, and 3) to protect the Organization's interest and/or prevent the appearance of a conflict of interest in any other similar situations which may arise. This policy is intended to supplement but not replace any applicable state and federal laws governing conflict of interest applicable to nonprofit and charitable organizations.

Article II

1. Interested Person: Any director, officer, or member of a committee governing board-delegated powers, which has a direct or indirect financial interest, as defined below, is an interested person, or if a family member of the interested person has a financial interest as defined below.

Family member means a person's spouse or spouse's sibling or child, a person's sibling or sibling's spouse or child, a person's child or child's spouse, or a person's parent or parent's spouse, and includes these relationships as created by adoption or marriage.

- **2. Financial Interest:** A person has a financial interest if the person has, directly or indirectly, through business, investment or family:
- a. An ownership or investment interest in any entity with which the Organization has a transaction, arrangement, or potential to support at a government public hearing;
- b. A compensation arrangement with NOBL or with any entity or individual with which NOBL has a transaction, arrangement, or potential to support at a government public hearing;
- c. A potential ownership or investment interest in, or compensation arrangement with, any entity or individual with which NOBL is negotiating a transaction, arrangement, or support at a government hearing;
- d. Will substantially benefit financially from any action of the NOBL Board or a NOBL committee; compensation, substantial financial interest or benefit includes direct and indirect remuneration as well as gifts or favors that are \$5,000.00 or more; or

e. An existing or potential ownership or investment interest, or compensation arrangement with, any entity or individual in direct competition with an entity or individual with which NOBL is negotiating a transaction, arrangement, or support at a government hearing.

Article III

Procedures

1. Duty to Disclose: In connection with any actual or possible conflict of interest an interested person must disclose the existence of the financial interest and be given the opportunity to disclose all material facts to the directors and members of committees with governing board-delegated powers considering the proposed transaction, arrangement, or support.

2. Procedures for Addressing the Conflict of Interest

- a. Any member of the Organization may self-determine that they have a conflict of interest. The committee or board may also discuss whether a conflict exists; the person with the potential conflict can be a part of the discussion but may not vote on whether they have a conflict.
- b. An interested person may watch a presentation at the governing board or committee meeting, but after the presentation, he/she will be asked to leave the meeting during the discussion of, and the vote on, the transaction, arrangement, or support involving the possible conflicts of interest.
- c. The chairperson of the governing board or committee shall, if appropriate, appoint a disinterested person or committee to investigate alternatives to the proposed transaction or arrangement.
- d. After exercising due diligence, the governing board or committee shall determine whether the Organization can obtain with reasonable efforts a more advantageous transaction or arrangement from a person or entity that would not give rise to a conflict of interest.

e. If a more advantageous transaction or arrangement is not reasonably possible under circumstances not producing a conflict of interest, the governing board or committee shall determine by a majority vote of the disinterested directors whether the transaction or

arrangement is in the Organization's best interest, for its own benefit, and whether it is fair and reasonable. In conformity with the above determination it shall make its decision as to whether to enter into the transaction or arrangement.

3. Violations of the Conflicts of Interest Policy

- a. If the governing board or committee has reasonable cause to believe a member has failed to disclose actual, possible, or perceived conflicts of interest, it shall inform the member of the basis for such belief and afford the member an opportunity to explain the alleged failure to disclose.
- b. If after hearing the member's response and after making further investigation as warranted by the circumstances, the governing board or committee determines the member has failed to disclose an actual or possible conflict of interest, it shall take appropriate disciplinary and corrective action.
- c. Any decision by a committee or board involving a vote by a member who has not disclosed a conflict of interest shall be void and of no effect.

Article IV

Records of Proceedings

The minutes of the governing board and all committees with board delegated powers shall contain:

a. The names of the persons who disclosed or otherwise were found to have a financial interest in connection with an actual, possible, or perceived conflict of interest, the nature of the financial interest, any action taken to determine whether a conflict of interest was present, and the governing board's or committee's decision as to whether a conflict of interest in fact existed.

b. The names of the persons who were present for discussions and votes relating to the transaction, arrangement, or support, the content of the discussion, including any alternatives to the proposed transaction or arrangement, and a record of any votes taken in connection with the proceedings.

Article V

Compensation

- a. Although voting members of the governing board may not currently receive compensation, directly or indirectly, from the Organization for services, should such an arrangement be allowed again in the future those members will be precluded from voting on matters pertaining to their own compensation.
- b. A voting member of any committee may receive compensation, directly or indirectly, from the Organization for services as defined by the board in their committee role; such members shall be selected by the Nominating Committee which is composed of uninterested board members, and they are precluded from voting on matters pertaining to their compensation.
- c. No voting member of the governing board or any committee whose jurisdiction includes compensation matters and who receives compensation, directly or indirectly, from the Organization, either individually or collectively, is prohibited from providing information to any committee regarding compensation.

Article VI

Periodic Reviews

To ensure the Organization operates in a manner consistent with charitable purposes and does not engage in activities that could jeopardize its tax-exempt status, periodic reviews shall be conducted. The periodic reviews shall, at a minimum, include the following subjects:

- a. Whether compensation arrangements and benefits are reasonable, based on competent survey information, and the result of arm's length bargaining.
- b. Whether partnerships, joint ventures, and arrangements with management organizations conform to the Organization's written policies, are properly recorded, reflect reasonable investment or payments for goods and services, further charitable purposes and do not result in impermissible private benefit or in an excess benefit transaction.

Article VII

Use of Outside Experts

When conducting the periodic reviews as provided for in Article VII, NOBL may, but need not, use outside advisors. If outside experts are used, their use shall not relieve the governing board of its responsibility for ensuring periodic reviews are conducted.

Article VIII

Annual Statements

Each director, officer and members of a committee with governing board-delegated powers shall annually complete a disclosure form and sign a statement, which affirms such person:

a. Has received a copy of the conflicts of interest policy.

- b. Has read and understands the policy.
- c. Has agreed to comply with the policy and
- d. Understands the Organization is charitable and in order to maintain its federal tax exemption it must engage primarily in activities, which accomplish one or more of its tax-exempt purposes.

Disclosure

Please describe any relationships, transactions, and positions you hold (volunteer or otherwise). Specifically, any other nonprofit and for-profit boards you (and your spouse) sit on, any for-profit businesses for which you or an immediate family member are an officer or director, or a majority shareholder, and the name of your employer and any businesses you or a family member own:

1	
2	
3	
<u>Si</u>	<u>gnature</u>
I hereby certify that the information the best of my knowledge. My signa statements a-d in Section VIII abov	3
Printed Name	Title
Signature	Date

Adopted by the NOBL Board of Directors January 17, 2022.

KEEP THIS PAGE FOR YOUR RECORDS.

This page deliberately left blank.

a. Has received a copy of the conflicts of interest policy.

- b. Has read and understands the policy.
- c. Has agreed to comply with the policy and
- d. Understands the Organization is charitable and in order to maintain its federal tax exemption it must engage primarily in activities, which accomplish one or more of its tax-exempt purposes.

Disclosure

Please describe any relationships, transactions, and positions you hold (volunteer or otherwise). Specifically, any other nonprofit and for-profit boards you (and your spouse) sit on, any for-profit businesses for which you or an immediate family member are an officer or director, or a majority shareholder, and the name of your employer and any businesses you or a family member own:

1	
2	
3	
<u>Signa</u>	<u>ature</u>
I hereby certify that the information set the best of my knowledge. My signature statements a-d in Section VIII above.	•
Printed Name	Title
Signature	Date

Adopted by the NOBL Board of Directors January 17, 2022.

SIGN AND RETURN THIS PAGE FOR NOBL'S RECORDS.

Board Policy on Volunteer Stipend / Gratuities

Adopted November 14, 2022

In order to maintain protection for our volunteers under the Federal Volunteer Protection Act, neighborhood clean up project participants and committee members must participate of their own free will with no expectation of compensation.

Stipends

Who is eligible: Members (live, own property, or have a business in Belknap) who commit to a full year as a volunteer committee member or GVSU Social Work interns.

The NOBL Board of Directors authorizes the Executive Director to issue a token stipend (to defray expenses) not to exceed \$500 annually to committee members and GVSU social work interns in compliance with Department of Labor classification of volunteers. The NOBL Board further directs that such token stipends should be issued in two installments, one at the beginning of the project and one upon completion. The stipend to committee chairs will not exceed \$500 and the stipend to non-chair volunteers will not exceed \$400.

Gratuities

Who is eligible: Volunteers who participate in neighborhood clean up projects promoted as NOBL calendar events.

The NOBL Board of Directors authorizes the Executive Director or their designee to issue token thank you gift cards not to exceed \$20 to a local restaurant or coffee shop at the end of the neighborhood clean up event.

SUCCESSION PLAN:

It is prudent for organizations to prepare a succession plan for contingencies due to the disability, death or departure of the Executive Director. This plan will facilitate the transition to interim and longer-term leadership. Understanding the ED's job description and duties (in our case, including monthly grant paperwork and coordinating with bookkeepers at DD Morgan) is an important pre-requisite to handling a transition well.

Scenario 1: Temporary Unplanned Absence (short or long term)

- The Executive Director or the ED's next of kin should inform the Board Chair of the absence as soon as possible. The Chair should convene a meeting of the officers to affirm the plan or make modifications as appropriate.
- The officers should appoint an acting Executive Director.
 Options include Gregg Hampshire at Creston Neighborhood
 Association (ghampshire@crestongr.com), Annette Vandenberg at
 West Grand Neighborhood Organization
 (annette@westgrand.org), and Amy Brower at Roosevelt Park
 (amy@rooseveltparkna.org). If total compensation for the interim
 is to remain under \$10,000 (approximately 6 months) making a
 direct approach and request rather than an open search should be
 acceptable for this step. Duties may be split among multiple
 individuals.
- The person appointed as Acting Executive Director shall have the full authority for decision-making and independent action as the regular Executive Director.
- The Chair shall monitor the work of the Acting Executive Director.
- The Chair will notify staff, board, and neighbors of the delegation of authority.
- The Acting Executive Director will notify key contacts listed in internal documentation.

- The decision for when the absent ED returns should be determined by ED & Chair.

Scenario 2: Permanent Change in Executive Director

- Follow above procedures, plus the full board should appoint a Transition and Search Committee at its next regularly scheduled board meeting to plan and carry out a transition to a new permanent Executive Director. Consider the need for outside consulting, an Interim Executive Director, and planning for either if applicable.

By reviewing this plan annually, we will stay up to date with whether we have additional talent in-house to promote and consider their compensation changes. At that point we would add org charts and have the expected internal interim sign the approved process.

Initial Plan Adopted in 2019

Last review: January 9, 2023

Confirm Succession Details and separate 1Password/Laptop Emergency
Kit files provided to Chair on